MASA & Company

Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of
ACIC Advisory Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of ACIC Advisory Private
Limited (the “Company’’), which comprise the balance sheet as at March 31, 2024, Statement of profit
and loss (including other comprehensive income), Statement of changes in equity and Statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of

significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013,
as amended (the “Act”} in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2024, and its losses and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows
for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs), as specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone
Financial Statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with
the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions
of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone

financial statements.

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Company’s Annual report, but does not include the
standalone financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The Company’s annual report is
expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's report,

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we will
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether such
other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in

the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
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Responsibility of Management and those charged with Governance for the Standalone Financial
Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these standalone Financial Statements that give a true and fair view
of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, statement of
change in equity and statement of cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and
other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls,
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and
fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are
responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no

realistic alternative but to do so.
The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit.

We also:

+ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional ormissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

+ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness

of such controls.

+  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by Management and Board of Directors.
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+ Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going
concemn basis of accounting in preparation of standalone financial statements and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our audifor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to ¢cease to

continue as a going concern,

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with govemance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in
the “Annexure I”” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that;

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our exanunation of those books;

(c) The Balance sheet, the Statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income),
the Statement of changes in equity and the Statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report
are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS
specified under Section 133 of the Act.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2024
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act;

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company with reference to these financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such
controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure II” to this report;

- /’
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(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company does not have any pending litigation which would impact its financial
position;

it.  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses;

iii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company;

iv.  (a) Management has represented to us that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other
than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of
funds) by the Company to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign entities
(“Intermedianes”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise,
that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons
or entifies identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries;

{b) Management has represented to us that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other
than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts no funds have been received by the
Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding
Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

(c) Based on our audit procedure conducted that are considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our attention that cause us to
believe that the representation given by the Management under paragraph (2){g)(iv)(a)
& (b) contain any material misstatement;

v.  The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year;
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vi. Based on our examination which included test checks, except for the instances
mentioned below, the Company has used accounting software for maintaining its books
of account, which have a feature of recording audit trail {edit log) facility and the same
has operated throughout the remaining year for all relevant transactions recorded in the

respective software:

The feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility was not enabled in the accounting
software relating to revenue, expenses, trade receivables, trade payables and general
ledger for the period April 01, 2023 to February 05, 2024.

Further, for the periods where audit trail (edit log) facility was enabled and operated
throughout the year for the respective accounting software, we did not come across any
instance.

For MASA & Company
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number:

per Amar Deep éinghal
Partner
Membership Number: 505866

Place of Signature: New Delhi
Date: 24 May 2024

UDIN: 245058 6B K EMIN Y 8138
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Annexure I referred to in paragraph 1 under “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements™ of our report of even date

Re: ACIC Advisory Private Limited ("the Company™)

(1) (a}(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment.

(B) The Company does not own any intangible assets. Accordingly, the provisions of clause
3(i)}(a}(B) of the Order are not applicable to the Company for maintenance of proper records
and hence not commented upon.

(b} The Company holds very immaterial amount of property, plant and equipment. Therefore
no physical verification by the Management of theses property, plant and equipment
performed during the year due to immaterial amount However, during the course of audit
nothing comes to knowledge to us which indicate the discrepancies.

(¢} The Company does not own any immovable property. Accordingly, the provisions of
clause 3(i)(c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not revalued
its property, plant and equipment (including right of use assets) during the year.

(e) According to the information and explanations given by the Management, no proceedings
have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami property
under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made

thereunder.

(ii) (a) The Company does not own any inventory. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(ii}(a)
of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

(b) Based on the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not been
sanctioned any working capital from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of

current assets.

(iii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not made any
investments in or provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the
nature of loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any
other parties. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(iii) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company and hence not commented upon.

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, provisions of
Section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act 2013 in respect of loans and advances given,
investments made and, guarantees, and securities given are not applicable to the Company.

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the
Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, the
provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.
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(vi) According to the information and explanations given to us, we are of the opinion that
provisions of maintenance of cost records prescribed under Section 148(1) of the Companies

Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

(vii) (@) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is regularly
depositing undisputed statutory dues including Goods and services tax, provident fund,
employees’ state insurance, income-tax, cess and any other statutory dues with the appropriate
authorities. However, there are no such arrears of outstanding statutory dues as on the last day
of the financial year concerned for a period of more than six months from the date, they

became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues refetred to in
sub-clause (a) which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

(viii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not have any
transaction that were surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax
assessments under the Income-tax Act, 1961,

(ix) (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the
Management, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in
the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

(b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority lender.

{(c) No term loans were obtained by the Company during the year. Accordingly, the provisions
of clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, no funds raised on
short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

(e) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has
not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its
subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.

(f) The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its
subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies. Accordingly, the provisions of clause
3(ix)(f) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(x) (a) According to the information and explanations given by the Management, the Company
has not raised any money way of initial public offer/ further public offer including (debt
instruments). Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(x)(a) of the Order are not applicable to

the Company.

{(b) According to the information and explanations given by the Management and on the basis
of our examination of records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential
allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertiable debenture during the
year. Accordingly, clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.
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(xi)  (a) Based on examination of books and records of the Company and according to the
information and explanation given to us, considering the principles of materiality outlined in
Standards on Auditing, we report that no fraud by the Company or no fraud on the Company
by the officers and employees of the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

{(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section
(12) of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-
4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the
Central Government.

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company
has not received any whistle-blower complaints during the year.

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.
Therefore, the requirement to report on clause 3(xii) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

(xiif) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us transactions with
the related parties are in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013
where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the financial
statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv) The provisions of Internal audit are not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the
provisions of clause 3(xiv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not
commented upon,

(xv) According to the information and explanations given by the Management, the Company has
not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him as

referred to in Section 192 of Companies Act, 2013,

(xvi) (a) The Company is not required to registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi}(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made
by the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

(d) According to the information and explanations provided to us, the Group (as per the
provisions of the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) has more
than one CIC as part of the Group. The Group has three CICs as part of the Group.

(xvii) The Company has incurred cash losses by Rs 7.88 million in the current and Rs 31.56 million
in the immediately preceding financial year.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and hence reporting
under 3(xviti) of the order is not applicable to the Company.
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(xix) On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets
and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements,
our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans, and based on our
examination of evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention,
which causes us to believe that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities, existing at
the date of balance sheet, as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the

balance sheet date.,

We further state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company and our
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any
guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(xx) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the Management,
the provision of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company
for the financial year. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(xx) are not applicable to the

Company.

For MASA & Company
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 038446N

B

per Amar Deep Singhal
Partner
Membership Number: 505866

Place of Signature: New Delhi
Date; 24 May 2024
UDIN: 24505866 KEMKWYB13%
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Annexure II referred to in paragraph 2(f) under “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements” of our report of even date

Re: ACIC Advisory Private Limited (‘the Company’)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i} of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of ACIC Advisory Private
Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31,2024 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Mapagement’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Intemal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets,
the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies

Act, 2013.
Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
(the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing as specified under Section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and, both
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, Those Standards and the Guidance Noie
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to
these financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in

all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures fo obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements and their
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to
these financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these

financial statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting with Reference to these
Financial Statements

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these financial
statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A Company's internal financial control over financial
reporting with reference to these financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1)
pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of Management and directors of the Company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition,
use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial

statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Contrels Over Financial Reporting with Reference to
these Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of intermal financial controls over financial reporting with
reference to these financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper Management
override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference
to these financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements may become inadequate because
of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may

deteriorate.
Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate infernal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to these financial statements and such internal financial controls
over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements were operating effectively as at
March 31, 2024, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

For MASA & Company
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 038446N

Place of Signature; New Delhi
Date: 24 May 2024

UDIN: 245 05 866 BKEMIN ¥813 8
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ACIC Advisory Private Limited
CIN;US5209HR2019FTCO30876

Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2024

(Al anounis are m INR auifions. weless othervise sited)

Note
ASSETS

MNon-current assefs

Asg at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

Property, plant and equipment 3 093 361
Financial assets
Other financial assets 4 - .05
Income Lax assets {net) 5 1465 558
Total non-current assets 15.58 9.24
Current assefs
Financial assets
Trade receivables ] 941 3852
Cash and cash equivalents It 1.06 278
Other financial assets 8 012 E
Other cucrent assers 9 0.69 8.64
Total eurrent assers 10.58 49.94
TOTAL ASSETS 26,46 39.18
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equiry share capital 10 0,10 (A 1]
Cher equity 1§ (43 34) (36.28)
Total equity {43.74) (36.18)
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Prowvisions 12 0.73 5.09
Total non- curvent liabilities .73 509
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Trade payables 13
- total outstanding, dues of micra enterprises 027 070
and small enierprises
- tlotal outsta.nldmg dues ofcreﬂuors_other than 4628 1749
micro enterprses and small enterprises
Other financial ltabilities 14 047 15.24
Ouher curreny ligbilities 15 22,37 55.69
Provigicns 16 0.08 .13
Total current liabilines 69.47 90,27
Total ligbilities 70.20 95.36
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 16,46 59.18

The notes from Mote | to Mote 31 form an inlegral part of these financial starements
As per our report of ever date atached

For MASA & Company
Chartered Adceountanis

Fow- and on behall ol Board of Directors of
ACIC Advisory Private Limited

Amar Deep S ul' N Fatta
Partner Director
wlembership No.: 503366 DIN: 07836515
Place: New Delhi Place: Guragram

Dare: 24 May 2024

Date: 24 May 2024

QMT;&

Simranjeet Singh
DIN: 0BOB3337

Place: Gurugram
Dare: 24 May 2024



ACIC Advisory Private Limited
CIN: US5209HR2019FTCO80876

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Al amovnts are m INR sullions, unless otherwise siated)

Tncome

Revenrue from operations
Qther income

Total income

Expenses

Employee benefits expense
Other expenses

Loss before finance costs, depreciation and tax

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Loss before tax

Tax expense
Curreat tax
Deferred tax

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income
Frems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

- Re-measurement gain /loss on defined benefit obligations

- Income tax relating to iterms mentioned above
Other comprehensive gain, net of tax

Total comprehensive loss for the year

Earnings/(Loss) per equity share (Face value of TNR 10 each)

Basic ([MR)
Diluted ([NR)

For the year ended For the year ended
Note 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
17 90.14 3320
18 022 0.95
90.36 39.15
19 2738 39.34
20 70.86 31.02
98.24 70.86
(7.88) (31.71)
20 0.29 0.23
0.29 0.23
(8.17 (31.94)
3
- 0.16
- 0.16
{8.1Th {31.79)
19 o6l 0.60
- {0.16)
0.61 0.44
{7.56) 31.34)
2
(756.00) (3,134.00)
(756.00) 13.134.00)

The notes from Note 1 to Note 31 form an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For MASA & Company
Churiered Accouniants

ICAI Firm Registration NSBSLH{JN

Amar Deep Si
Purther
Membership Mo.: 505856

Place: New Delhi
Date: 24 May 2024

#or and an hehalf of Roard of Directors of
ACIC Advisory Private Limited

w

Rahul X Latta
Birector
DIN: 07886315

Place. Gurugram
Date: 24 May 2024

Q mv]-)um] )

Simranjeet Singh
Phrector
DIN: 08083337

Place: Gurugram
Date: 24 May 2024



ACTC Advisory Private Limited

CTN: U55209HR2019FTC030376

Stacement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Al amounts are w1 INR anilions, umlesy othenise siated)

A, Cash flows from operating activities
Loss before tax
Adjustments for;
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Loss on disposal of property. plant and equipment
Operating cash flows before movement in assets and liabilities
Decrease / {increase) in trade receivables
(Increase) in orther financial assets
Decrease / (increase) in other assets
Increase in rade payables
(Decrease) / imgrease in other liabilities
{Decrease) / increase in proyisions
{Decrease) f inceease m other finzneial liabilities
Cash generated from operations
Income raxes paid (net)
MNer cash (used in) / generated by operating acrivities (A)

B. Cash flows fram investing activities
Purchase of praperty, piant and equipment and intangible assets
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Net cash used in investng activities (B)

C. Cash {lows from financing activities

Net {decrease)fincrease in cash and cash equivalents (A+BHC)
Cash and cash equivalents ar the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivaleniz at the end of the year

Notes to statemeni of cash flows
i Components of cash amd cash equivalents
Cash on hand
Balances with banks
= It CLUTENT ACCOUNTS

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
3.1 (31 94)
029 023
3.16 -
(4.86) (3L
29.51 (36.22)
{0.07) -
795 (733)
2836 1743
(3332} 5312
{4.82) 317
{14.TH 1229
7.9% 10.75
(8.93) {4 95}
(0.95) 5.80
(1.0M (338
0.30 -
(0.77) (3.84)
(1.72) 1.96
278 032
1.06 2,78
As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
- o004
1.06 2.74
1.06 178

ji. The Cash Flows from operating activities section in Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared in accordance with the ‘Indirsct Method' as se1 out in the [nd AS 7

"Statenment of Cash Flows™
The notes from Note | to Note 31 form an integral past of these financial staternents

As per our report of even dare anached
For MASA & Company

Chartered Accountants
1CAI Firm Registration No, 038446N

Amar Deep
Partner
Membership No?

Place: Mew Delhi
Dare: 24 May 2024

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
ACIC Advisory Private Limited

B

Direcior

DIN: 07886515

Place: Gurugram
Date: 24 May 2024

gmw‘-fr;@u]k

Simranjeet Singh
furecior

DIN: 08083337

Place: Gurugram
Date: 24 May 2024
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Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 Mareh 2024
F Al amonnts are in INR millions, wiless otherwive stoted)

Equity share capital

Particalars Number of shares Amount
As at 01 April 2022 10,000 0.10
Changes in equity share capital during the year = =
As at 31 March 2023 10,000 0.10
Changes in equity share capital during the year - -
As at 31 March 2024 10,000 .10
Other equity (refer note 11)
Particulars Reserves and surplus Total
Retained earmings Remeasarement of
defined benefit
Balance as at (1 April 2022 (4.93) - {4.93)
Loss (or the year {3179 - (30.79}
Other comprehensive loss (net of tax) - 044 0.44
Total comprehensive loss {31.7%) 044 {31.35)
Transferred to retained eamnings 044 0.44) -
Balance as at 31 March 2023 (36.28) - (36.28)
Loss for the year 317 - 3.17
Orther comprehensive loss (ner of tax) - 061 0.61
Total comprehensive loss 8.17) a.61 (7.56)
Transferred to retained eamings 0.1 {0.61) -
Balance as at 31 March 2024 (43.84) - {43.84)

The notes from Note 1 to Note 31 form an integral part of these financial statemnents

Ag per our report ot even date attached

For MASA & Company
Chartered Accountants
{CAI Firm Registration Mo 0384461

Amar De
Parener
Membership No.: 505856

Piace: New Delhi
Date: 24 May 2024

For and on bebalf of Board of Directors of

ACIC Advisory Private Limited

B S
Rahul N Latta Simranjeet Singh
Drector Dhirector
DIN: 7886515 DIN: 03033337
Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram
Date. 24 May 2024 Date: 24 May 2024
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Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(All amounts are in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

1.1 Corporate information

1.2

ACIC Advisory Private Limited ('the Company’) was incorporated on June 13, 2019 under the Companies
Act, 2013. The business of ACIC Advisory Private Limited (* AAPL’) is to manage and monitor the operations
of the hotel properties by the hotel operators and to ensure that all the hotel properties that AAPL manages
are operated by the hotel operator in accordance with the hotel management agreements.

The shareholders of the Company (“ACIC Mauritius 2”) at their meeting held on March 17, 2023 had entered
into a Share Subscription and Purchase Agreement with SAMHI Hotels Limited (“SAMHI” or “Acquirer”)
for conditional sale of their shareholding in the Company to SAMHI Hotels Limited (“SAMHI” or
“Acquirer”). During the current year, the transfer of shareholding has been executed on 10 August 2023,
resulting in SAMHI being the holding company of the Company w.c.f. 10 August 2023.

The financial statements have been approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 24 May 2024,

Basis of preparation

These Ind AS financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind
AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended from time to time notified
under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, (*Act’) and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The standalone financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the Company’s
functional currency. All the amounts have been rounded-ofT to the nearest millions and upto two decimal places,
unless otherwise indicated.

Basis of Measurement

The standalone financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following
items:

Items Measurement basis
Certain financial assets and liabilities (including derivatives Fair value

instruments)

Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of standalone financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make
Judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses and the accompanying disclosures. Uncertainty about the
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that may require material adjustment to the carrying value
of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.




ACIC Advisory Private Limited

CIN:US5209HR2019FTC080876

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(4l amounts are in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.

Following are the significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting
policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the standalone financial statements:

i) Provisions

The assessments undertaken in recognizing provisions and contingencies have been made in accordance with
Ind AS 37, Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets’, which involves key assumptions about
the likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of resources.

ii) Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Certain financial instruments are valued on the basis of valuation techniques that feature one or more significant
market inputs that are unobservable, and for them the measurement of fair value is more judgmental. An
instrument in its entirety is classified as valued using significant unobservable input if, in the opinion of
management, a significant proportion of the instrument’s inception profitloss or greater than 5% of the
instrument’s valuation is driven by unobservable inputs. ‘Unobservable’ in this context means that there is little
or no current market data available from which to determine the price at which an arm’s length transaction
would be likely to occur.

iti} Useful lives, recoverable amounts and impairment of property, plant and equipment

The estimated useful lives and recoverable amounts of property, plant and equipment are based on estimates and
assumptions regarding the expected market outlook, expected future cash flows, obsolescence, demand,
competition, known technological advances. The Company reviews the useful lives and recoverable amounts
of property, plant and equipment at the end of each reporting date.

iv) Employee benefit obligations

Employee benefit obligations (gratuity and compensated absences) are determined using actuarial valuations,
which involves determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the
complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive
to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

v) Fair value measurement of financial instruments

The fair values of financial instruments recorded in the balance sheet in respect of which quoted prices in
active markets are not available, are measured using valuation techniques. The inputs to these models are taken
from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in
establishing fair values. Judgments include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and
volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial
instruments. Also, refer Note 26 and 28 for further disclosures.
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Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
{All amounis are in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

vi) Recognition of deferred tax assets/ liabilities

Recognition of deferred tax assets/ liabilities involves making judgements and estimations about the availability
of future taxable profit against which carried forward tax losses carried forward can be used. A deferred tax
asset is recognized for unused tax losses, deductible temporary differences and MAT credit available. To the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be utilized.

Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that the related the related tax benefit will be realized.

vii) Current and non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current / non-current classification.

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

- it is expected to be realized in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Company’s normal operating

cycle;

- it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

- it is expected to be realized within 12 months after the reporting date; or

- it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least
12 months after the reporting date.

A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:
- it is expected to be settled in the Company’s normal operating cycle;
- it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;
- it is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date; or
- the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months
after the reporting date. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its
settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification.

Current assets/liabilities include current portion of non-current financial assets/liabilities respectively. All other
assets/ liabilities are classified as non-current. Deferred tax assets and liabilities (if any) are classified as non-
current assets and liabilities.




ACIC Advisory Private Limited

CIN:U55209HR2019FTC080876

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
{All amounts are in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

viii) Operating cycle

Based on the nature of the operations and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
realization in cash or cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as twelve months for
the purpose of current/ non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

ix) Measurement of fair values

A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for
both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

P In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

P In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate
econormic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would
use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use ol relevanl observable inputs and minimising the use of

unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within
the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole;

P Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

P Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement

is directly or indirectly observable
P Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement

is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of
the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, investments (other than investment in subsidiaries), at fair
value at each reporting date. Also, fair value of financial instruments measured at amortised cost is disclosed in Note

26. - ..
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Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(All amounts are in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

2. Material accounting policies
1) Property, plant and equipment

Recognition and measurement

Property, plant and equipment including capital work-in-progress are measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses if any.

Cost comprises the purchase price, import duties and other non-refundable taxes or levies, borrowing costs if
capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its
intended use and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is
located. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are
accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment,

Subsequent costs and disposal

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of property, plant and equipment is added to its book value only if it
is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company. All
other expenses on existing property, plant and equipment, including day-to-day repair and maintenance
expenditure, are charged to the profit or loss for the period during which such expenses are incurred.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of property, plant and equipment are measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the profit or loss

when the asset is derecognized.

Depreciation

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated using the straight-line method (‘SLM’) to allocate
their cost, net of their residual values, over their estimated useful lives (determined by the management based
on technical estimates). The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate,
at the end of each reporting period. In case of a revision, the unamortized depreciable amount is charged over

the remaining useful life.

Depreciation on addition/ (disposals} is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e. from/ (up to) the date on which the
asset is ready for use/ (disposed-off).

The management estimate of the useful life of various categories of assets is as follows:

Asset category* Useful Life (Years) ths:gl:llh:lﬁ ?;’E::s)
Vehicle 8 8
Computers and accessories 3 3
Office equipment 3 5
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Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(All amounts are in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

* For the above class of assets, the management based on assessment of extemnal valuation specialist and internal
technical evaluation, has determined that the useful lives as given above best represent the period over which
management expects to use these assets.

2) Financial instruments

ii.

Recognition and initial measurement

Trade receivables and debt securities issued are initially recognized when they are originated. All other
financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognized when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

All financial instruments are initially recognized at fair value. Fair value is the price that would be received to
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value of a financial instrument on initial recognition is generally its transaction price
(that is, the fair value of the consideration given or received). However, if there is a difference between the
transaction price and the fair value of financial instruments whose fair value is based on a quoted price in an
active market or a valuation technique that uses only data from observable markets, the Company recognizes
the difference as a gain or loss at inception (‘day 1 gain or loss’). In all other cases, the entire day 1 gain or loss
is deferred and recognized in the income statement over the life of the transaction until the transaction matures
or is closed out.

A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair vaiue
through profit or loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.

Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at

- Amortized cost;

- FVOCT - debt investment;

- FVOCI - equity investment; or

- FVTPL

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the
Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVTPL:
- the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows;
and
- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A debt investment is measure at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at
FVTPL:
- theasset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash

flows and selling financial assets; and
- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely

payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Al amounts are in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortized cost or FVOCI as described above are measured at
FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably
designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortized cost or at FVOCI
as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Financial assets: Business model assessment
The Company makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is held at a

portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is provided to
management, for instance the stated policies and objectives for the pertfolio, frequency, volume and timing of
sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such sales and expectations about future sales activity.

Financial assets: Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest for
the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial recognition.
‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk associated with the
principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic lending risks and costs (e.g.
tiquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Company
considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains
a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet
this condition. In making this assessment, the Company considers:

— contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;

— terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable interest rate features;

— prepayment and extension features;

Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial assets at| These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any
FVTPL interest or dividend income, are recognized in profit or loss.

Financial assets | These assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest
at amortized cost | method. The amortized cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income,
foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognized in profit or [oss.
Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognized in profit or loss.

Delg't\;g&stmems These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income under the
at effective interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are
recognized in profit or loss. Other net gains and losses are recognized in OCI. On
derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in OCI are reclassified to profil or loss.

Equity These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognized as
investments income in profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of
at FVOCI the cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses are recognized in OCI and are

not reclassified to profit or loss.

Financial liabilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortized cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as
at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, or it is a detivative or it is designated as such on initial
recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and [osses, including any
interest expense, are recognized in profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequemly measured at
amortized cost using the effective mterest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are
recognized in profit or loss. Any gg -- closs on derecognition is also recognized in profit or loss.
& 04,.0
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Fii.

v,

Derecognition

Financial assets

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial
asset expite, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially
all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Company neither
transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control of the
financial asset.

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognized on its balance sheet, but retains
either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred assets are not

derecognized.

Financial liabilities
The Company derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled or

expire.

The Company also derecognizes a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows under the
modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified terms is
recognized at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished and
the new financial liability with modified terms is recognized in profit or loss.

Offsetting
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when, and

only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either
to settle them on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

v. Modification of financial assets and liahilities

Financial assets:
If the terms of a financial asset are modified, the Company evaluates whether the cash flows of the modified

asset are substantially different. If the cash flows are substantially different, then the contractual rights to cash
flows from the original financial asset are deemed to have expired. In this case, the original financial asset is
derecognized and a new financial asset is recognized at fair value.

If the cash flows of the modified asset carried at amortized cost are not substantially different, then the
modiftcation does not result in derecognition of the financial asset. In this case, the Company recalculates the
gross carrying amount of the financial asset and recognizes the amount arising from adjusting the gross carrying
amount as a modification gain or loss in statement of profit and loss.

Financial Liabilities:

The Company derecognizes a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows of the modified
liability are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified terms is
recognized at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished and
the new financial liability with modified terms is recognized in statement of profit and loss.
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3} Impairment
A. Impairment of financial instruments

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether a financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired. Ind AS 109 on Financial instruments, requires expected credit losses to be measured through a loss
allowance. For trade receivables only, the Company recognises expected lifetime losses using the simplified
approach permitted by Ind AS 109, from initial recognition of the receivables. For other financial assets (not
being equity instruments or debt instruments measured subsequently at FVTPL) the expected credit losses are
measured at the 12 month expected credit losses or an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses if
there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.

The Company recognizes loss allowances for expected credit losses on financial assets measured at amortized
cost. At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortized cost and
debt securities at Fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL) are credit-impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit
impaired’ when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the

financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:

- significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;
- abreach of contract such as a default or being past due for 90 days or more;
- the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Company on terms that the Company would not consider

otherwise;
- itis probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization; or

- the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses, except for the

following, which are measured as 12 month expected credit losses
- debt securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and
- other debt securities and bank balances for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring over the
expected life of the financial instrument) has not increased significantly since initial recognition.

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.

Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument.

12 month expected credit losses are the portion of expected credit losses that result from default events that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument is less

than 2 months).

In all cases, the maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is the maximurm contractual
period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
and when estimating expected credit losses, the Company considers reasonable and supportable information that
is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information
and analysis, based on the Company’s historical experience and informed credit assessment and including

forward-looking information.
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The Company considers a financial asset to be in default when:
- the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Company in full, without recourse by the

Company to actions such as realizing security (if any is held); or
- the financial asset is 90 days or more past due.

Measurement of expected credit losses

Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the
present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the Company in accordance
with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to receive).

As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on
portfolio of its trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the
expected life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At every reporting date, the
historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analyzed.

Presentation of allowance for expected credit losses in the balance sheet

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount
of the assets.

Write-off
The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written-off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there

is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Company determines that the debtor
does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject
to the write-off. However, financial assets that are written-off could still be subject to enforcement activities
in order to comply with the Company’s procedures for recovery of amounts due.

B. Impairment of Non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each reporting date if there is any indication of impairment
based on internal/ external factors. An impairment loss is recognized wherever the carrying amount of an asset
(or cash generating unit) exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of the asset’s
(or cash generating unit’s) fair value less cost of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and risks specific to the asset (or cash generating unit).

These budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term
growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year.

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had

been recognized.

Impaimment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventories, are recognised in the
statement of profit and loss, except for properties previously revalued with the revaluation surplus taken to OCIL.
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4) Provisions

5)

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past event and it is probable
that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, in respect
of which a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

[f the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected
future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognized as finance cost. Provisions are
reviewed by the management at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or
a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation, or a present obligation whose amount cannot be estimated reliably. The Company does
not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the standalone financial statements.

6) Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs (including exchange differences arising from foreign currency
borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs) incurred by the Company in
connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition and/ or
comstruction of those property, plant and equipment which necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use are capitalized. Capitalization of borrowing costs is suspended in the period during
which active development is delayed due to interruption, other than temporary interruption. Other borrowing
costs are recognized as an expense in the Statement of profit and loss in the period in which they are incurred.

7) Employee benefits

(a) Short-term employee benefits

Employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of receiving employee services are classified as short-
term employee benefits. These benefits include salaries and wages, short-term bonus and ex-gratia. The
undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits to be paid in exchange for employee services is
recognized as an expense as the related service is rendered by employees.
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(b) Post-employment benefits
Defined contribution plan — Provident fund and Employee state insurance

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays specified
contributions and has no obligation to pay any further amounts. Provident fund scheme and employee state
insurance are defined contribution schemes. The Company makes specified monthly contributions towards
these schemes. The Company's contributions are recorded as an expense in the Statement of profit or [oss during
the period in which the employee renders the related service. If the contribution already paid is less than the
contribution payable under the scheme for service received before the balance sheet date, the deficit payable
under the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution
already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before the balance sheet date, then excess is
recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will lead to a reduction in future payment or a cash
refund.

Defined benefit plan — Gratuity

The Company's gratuity scheme is a defined benefit plan. The present value of obligations under such defined
benefit plans are determined based on actuarial valuation carried out by an independent actuary using the
Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognises each pertod of service as giving rise to an additional unit of
employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation.

The obligation is measured at the present value of estimated future cash flows. The discount rates used for
determining the present value of obligation under defined benefit plans, are based on the market yields on
government securities as at the balance sheet date, having maturity period approximating to the terms of related

obligations.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are
recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income and are never reclassified
to profit or loss. Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments
or curtailments are recognised immediately in the statement of profit or loss as past service cost.
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(¢} Other long-term employee benefit obligations — Compensated absences

The employees can carry-forward a portion of the unutilised accrued compensated absences and utilize it in
future service periods or receive cash compensation on termination of employment.

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as short-term
employee benefits. The group measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it
expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date. The group
tecognises expected cost of short-term employee benefit as an expense, when an employee renders the related
service,

The Company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-term
employee benefit for measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are provided for based on
the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at the reporting date. Actuarial gains/ losses are
tmmediately taken to the statement of profit and loss and are not deferred. The obligations are presented as
current liabilities in the balance. sheet if the entity does not have an unconditional right to defer the settlement
for at least twelve months after the reporting date.

8) Revenue recognition
Revenue will be recognised when it is realised or releasable and earned. Revenue is considered as realised or

realisable and earned when it has persuasive evidence of an arrangement, delivery has occurred, the sales price
is fixed or determinable and collectively is reasonably assured. Interest income will be recognised using time
proportion method.

9) Recognition of dividend income, interest income or expense

Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss on the date on which the company’s right to receive payment is
established.
Interest income or expense is recognised using the effective interest method.

The ‘effective interest rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through
the expected life of the financial instrument to:

- the gross cairying amount of the financial assets; or

- the amortised of the financial liability.

[n calculating interest income and expense, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of
the asset (when the asset is not credit-impaired) or to the amortised cost of the liability. However, for financial
asset that have become credit-impaired subsequent to initial recognition, interest income is calculated by
applying the effective interest rate to amortised cost of the financial asset. If the asset is no longer credit-
impaired, then the calculation of interest income reverts to the gross basis.
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10) Accounting for Foreign Currency Transactions

Transactions and balances
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional cutrency using the exchange rates at the dates
of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange
rates are recognized in the statement of profit or 1oss on net basis.

11) Income Taxes

Income tax comprises curvent and deferred tax. It is recognized in statement of profit or loss except to the
extent that it relates to an item recognized directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any
adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax reflects the
best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering the uncertainty, if any, related
to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting
date. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and considers whether it is probable that a taxation
authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment. The Company shall reflect the effect of uncertainty for each
uncertain tax treatment by using either most tikely method or expected value method, depending on which
method predicts better resolution of the treatment.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are off-set only if there is a legally enforceable right to set-off the
recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date. Deferred tax labilities
are recognised for all taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differencces, the carry forward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferted tax asset to
be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilitics are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the
asset is realised, or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively

enacted at the reporting date.
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Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying
transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

The Company offsets deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable
right to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or different taxable
entities which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities
or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

12) Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the intermal reporting provided to the Chief
Operating Decision Maker (‘\CODM?’).

Identification of segments:

In accordance with Ind AS 108, Operating Segment, the operating segments used to present segment
information are identified on the basis of information reviewed by the CODM to allocate resources to the
segments and assess their performance. An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in
business activities from which it eams revenues and incurs expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate
to transactions with any of the Company’s other components.

13) Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit or loss for the period atiributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period. Ordinary shares that will
be issued upon the conversion of a mandatorily convertible instrument are included in the calculation of basic
earnings per share from the date the contract is entered into.

For the purpose of calculating diluted eamings per share, the profit or loss for the period atiributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the
effects of all dilutive potential equity shares, except where the results would be anti-dilutive,

14) Leases
Company as a Lessee

On inception of a contract, the Company (as a lessee) assesses whether it contains a lease. A contract is, or
contains a lease when it conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the
Company assesses whether: (i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset; (ii) the Company has
substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease; and (iii) the
Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.
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At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognises a right-of-use asset (“ROU”) and a
corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of
twelve months or less (short-term leases) and do not contain a purchase option or are low value leases. For these
short-term and low value [eases, the Company recognises the lease payments as an operating expense on a
straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Lease contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. The Company allocates payments in the
contract to the lease and non-lease components based on their relative stand-alone prices and applies the lease

accounting model only to lease components.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognised at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
adjusted for initial direct costs incurred, lease payments made at or before the commencement date, any asset
restoration obligation, and less any lease incentives received. They are subsequently measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Right-of-use assets are also adjusted for any re-measurement
of lease liabilities. Unless the Company is reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the leased assets or renewal
of the leases at the end of the lease term, recognized right-of-use assets are depreciated to a residual value over
the shorter of their estimated useful life or lease term.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments to be made over the lease term.
The lease payments include fixed payments (including ‘in-substance fixed’ payments) and variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a rate, less any lease incentives receivable. ‘in-substance fixed’ payments
are payments that may, in form, contain variability but that, in substance, are unavoidable. In calculating the
present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.

The lease term includes periods subject to extension options which the Company is reasonably certain to
exercise and excludes the effect of early termination options where the Company is not reasonably certain that it
will exercise the option. Minimum lease payments include the cost of a purchase option if the Company is
reasonably certain it will purchase the underlying asset after the lease term.

Lease liabilities are re-measured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use asset if the
Company changes its assessment if whether it will exercise an extension or a termination option and any lease

modification.

Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognized as an expense in the period over
which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs. In respect of variable leases which guarantee a
minimum amount of rent over the lease term, the guaranteed amount is considered to be an ‘in-substance fixed’
lease payment and included in the initial calculation of the lease liability. Payments which are ‘in-substance

fixed’ are charged against the lease liability.

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have been
classified as financing cash flows.
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Company as a Lessor

At the inception of the lease the Company classifies each of its leases as either an operating lease or a finance
lease. The Company recognises lease payments received under operating leases as income on a straight-line
basis over the lease term, In case of a finance lease, finance income is recognised over the lease term based on a
pattern reflecting a constant periodic rate of return on the lessor’s net investment in the lease. When the Company
is an intermediate lessor it accounts for its interests in the head lease and the sub-lease separately. It assesses the
lease classification of a sub-lease with reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the head lease, not with
reference to the underlying asset. If a head lease is a short-term lease to which the Company applies the
exemption described above, then it classifies the sub-lease as an operating lease.

If an arrangement contains lease and non-lease components, the Company applies Ind AS 115 Revenue from
contracts with customers to allocate the consideration in the contract.

15) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of balances with the current accounts and cash on hand, cheques on
hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

16) Profit before finance cost, depreciation, amortisation and tax:

The Company presents EBITDA in the statement of profit and loss; this is not specifically required by Ind AS
1. The terms EBITDA are not defined in Ind AS. Ind AS complaint Schedule I aliows companies to present
line: itams, sith-line items and sih-tatals shall be presented as an additinn ar suhstitatinn on the fare nf The
standalone financial statements when such presentation is relevant to an understanding of the company’s
financial position or performance or to cater to industry/ sector-specific disclosure requirements or when
required for compliance with the amendments to the Companies Act, 2013 or under the Indian Accounting
Standards. Accordingly, the Company has elected to present eamings before interest, tax, depreciation and
amortisation (EBITDA) as a separate line item on the face of the statement of profit and loss.

Measurement of Profit before finance cost, depreciation, amortisation and tax:

The Company has elected to present eaming before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA) as a
separate line item on the face of the Statement of profit and loss. The Company measured EBITDA on the basis
of profit/ (loss) from continuing operation. In their measurement, the Company includes interest income but
does not include depreciation and amortization expenses, finance cost and tax expense.
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3 Property, plant and equipment

Reconciliation of carrying amount

Computers and Vehicle Office equipment Total
accessories

Gross carrying amouni
Bailance as at 01 April 2022 - - - -
Additions during the year - 384 - 384
Deletions during the year - - - -
Balanee as at 31 March 2023 - 3.54 - 3.84
Additions during the year 094 - 013 107
Deletions during the year - 384 - 384
Balance as at 31 March 2024 0.94 - 0.13 1.07
Accumulated depreciation
Balance as at 01 April 2022 - - - -
Depreciation charge for the year - 023 - 023
Reversal on disposai of assels - - - -
Balance as at 31 March 2023 - 023 - 023
Depreciation charge for the year 013 015 0.0l 0.29
Reversal on disposai of assets - 038 - 038
Balance as at 31 March 2024 0.13 - 0.01 0.14
MNet earrying amount
Balance as at 31 March 2023 - 3.61 - 3.61

- 0.12 0.93

Balance as at 31 March 2024 0.81
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4 Non-current financiel assets - Others
{Unsecnred, considered good)

Security depozits

-] Tmcome tax assets (net)

Ad income 1ax including TDS recievable net of p

As at
31 March 2024

As ot
31 March 2024

14 65
14.65

As at
31 March 2023

0.05

.05

As at
31 Marvch 2023

558
5.58
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Tncome tax For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
A: The major components of come tax expense / (mcome)} are
Recognised in statement of profir or [oss
Current tax . -
Deferred wx -
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Recognised in Other compreheasive income
Income tax on other comprehensive ncome - (16
- 016
E. Reconcilliation of efF tax rate [1ax and the accounting profit mudtiplied by Company's d ie 1ax Tale)
For the year eaded For the year ended
3t March 2024 31 March 2023
% Amownt e Amount
Loss before (ax {317 (31 940
Tax using the Company’s domesiic tax rate 2517 208}y 26.00 (£37)
Tax Effect ol
Mon-deductible differences - - (14 34 458
[mpact of difference in dep as per C Act, 2013 and as per Income-1ax Acr, 1961 184 1 15) 023 [oom
Deferred 1ax assel not creared in excess of deferred ax liabiliry on aiher components {27.05) 221 (I k] 1356
Effective tax rate - -
C. Deferred tas assets /liabilities
As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Deferred tax assets
Pravision for employee beneli - Q.09
- 0.09
Deferred 1ax liabilities
Property. plant and equipment and Tntangible assers - (0.09)
- {0.99)
Dreferred tax assets (net) - =
Deferred tax asset / (liability) recoguised * = -
* In view of absence of wirlual certanty of realizarion of unabsorbed tax losses, deferred 1ax asset hias not been recognized
D. Movement in feovporary differences
31 March 2024
Balance as ar Deferred tax Balance as a1
01 April 2023 difTevences 31 March 2024
. {A) generated bur mot {C=A+B)
Particulars receguised during
202324
B}
Deferred 1ax assets
Provision for employee benefi 109 {00% -
1.0 {0.091 -
Deferred tax liabilities
Property. plant and equipment and Intangible assets 0ve | 10091 -
0.0 | 10.09] :

Netdeferved tax asset
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31 March 2023

Balance as at Deferred tax Balamee as at
o1 April 2082 differences 31 March 2013
(A) generated but not (C=A+R)
Particulars recognised during
191223
L]
Deferred tax assets
Pravision fior emploves henefits - [sXd 009
- 0.09 0T
Deferred tax liabilities
Property. plani and equi and [ ble assets - 0% 009
- 009 0.09
Net deferred tax asset = =, =
E. Tax losses and unabsarbed depreciation carried forward
Tax losses for which no deferred 1ax asset was recopnised with expiry date are as follows
Asal
31 March 2024
Amount Expiry Period | FY)
Business loss 229 2031-32
Unabsocbed depreciation 093 Never expire
As at
31 March 2023
Amesnt Eapiry Period (FY)
Business loss for FY 202122 004 2029-30
Business loss far FY 2022-23 1312 2030-31
052 Mever expire

Unabsorbed depreciation
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6

Current linancial assers - Trade receivables
tmsecured)

Trade receivables

Asat
31 March 2024

As
31 March 2023

-Considered good 761 0z
Unbilled revemue
-Considered good 140 38 0
.01 3852
Less: Loss allowance - -
%00 38,52
Trade receivahl ing sch
As at 3 March 3034
Duistanding for following perlads from date of transaction
Particulars Unbilted Revenue Less than i | 6 msaths x I-2years| -3 years Move than 3 years Total
manths I year
(i) Undispuied Trade recennables — considered good 1 4o 76l - - - = 201
(i) Undigpuled Trade receirables ~ credit impaired - - - - - - -
iTﬂhl 140 760 - - - - 2.01
As at 31 March X023
Dustanding for following periods from date of trangaction
E Less than 6 | & months -
Particulars Unbilled Revenue ey Lyear |17 2¥ears| 2-3years More than J years Totad
3% 20 - - (L - = 52
38.20 - - 0.32 - - 35852
(a) The Compamy s exposure 1o credin and currency nisks, and loss allom ances redated to irade receivables are disclosed in Note 23
{b) Refer 10 Note 23 [or receivables from relaied panies
{¢) Thare are no disputed trade recsivables as a1 3t March 2024 and 31 March 2023
As at Ag at

Cuarrent financial assets - Cash and cash equivalewts

Balances with hanks
=N CUIment accounts
Cazh on hand

Current fimancial assets - Others
(Tinsecured, considered pood)

Security deposits

Ocher current assets

I secured, considered good)
Stall advance

Balance with saluion auhonties
Prepard expensas

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

106 274
- 004
1.0¢ .78
As at Az at
31 Mareh 2024 3t March 2023
012 -
0.12 -
As at As at

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

062 093
047 648

= 123
0.69 8.64
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10 Equity share capital As al As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Number of shares Amount MNumber of shares Amoumt
Authorised share capital
Equity shares of INR 10 ¢ach 0,000 050 50,000 050
50,000 .50 58,000 0.50
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up
Equity sheres of INR 10 each 10,000 010 10,000 LN ]
10,000 010 10,000 019
a) Reconciliation of the equity shares outstanding at the heginning amd at the end of reporiing year
Asat As at
31 March 2034 3t March 2023
Nusmber of shares Ampuriy Number of shares Amount
Equiry shares -
Arthe beginning of the year 10,000 oro 10,000 210
Add : lssued during the year - - - e
At the emd of the year 10,000 0.10 £0,008 .10

b) Rights, preferemces and restrictions attached 10 equity shaves

The Company has only one class of equity shares having the par value of INR 10 per share. Each holder of equity share i entitled 0 one vote per share. The equity shares are entitled 10
receive dividend as and when declared In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holder of equity shares will be eniitled to receive remaining assels of the Company, after

fisrit of all prefe 1 The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders
cf Shares held by uli holdimg / holding company andior their subsidiaries/ associates
MName of shareholder Asat Asg at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount

Equity shures of INR 10 ¢ach

SANMH! Hotels Limited. the holding company from 10 August 2023 9,990 olg -
- 2,950 L]

ACIC Mauntws 2, the holding company il L0 August 2023 -
d) Details of shareholders holdimg more thaw 5% shares
Name of sharcholder As al A at

31 Mlarch 2024 31 March 2023

Number of shares %e of holding Mumber of shares % of holding
Equity shares of INR 10 each
SAMHI Hotels Limited, the holding company from 10 August 2023 9,550 99 90% -
ACIC Mauritiug 2, the holding company oll 10 August 2023 - - 9.900 90 90%

¢} Deetails of sheares held by promaters

As ar 31 March 2024

= ~ .
Mo, of shares arthe  Change during the Mo, of shares at the % of Total Shares e change durine

N rOIM
BIEg & ter Name beginning of the year year cnd of the vear the vear
| ACIC Mauritius 9.9%0 (9,990} - 0% -100%
2 SAMHT Hotels Limited - ©.9%0 9.9%0 100% 100%
As an 31 March 2023
No. ; No. ——
§ N Pr er Name 3 0. of shares at the Change during the No. of shares at the % af Total Shares % change during
of the year year end of the year the vear

) ACIC Mauritius 2 9,990 - 9.990 100% -
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It Other equity As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Retined eamings {43.84) {36.28)
(43.84) (36.28)
As at As at

a) Retained earnings

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Balance at the beginning of the year {36.28) i4.93)
{Loss) for the year {8.17) (31.7:
Transferred from other comprehensive income 061 0.44
Balance at the end of the year (43.84) (36.28)
Retained eamings represent the amount of accumulated losses of the Company.
b) Other comprehensive income As at As at

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Balance at the beginning of the year - -
Remeasurements of defined benefit liability (net of tax) 061 0.44
Transferred to retained eamnings {0.61) {0.44)

Balance at the end of the year

Remeasurements of defined benefit liability comprises actuarial gains and losses.
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12 Nun-corrent Prosisivas Asa As 4l
3 March 202 31 Marth 2023
Proa tsion for emploa e benglits
Grotuidy (Refer 1o Mo 193 nai 183
Compensaed absenees (Refer 1o Mote 199 144 126
.73 S04
13 Current linandial diabilities - Trade payables Asal Ag at
31 March 2024 31 Murch 2023
Trade payables
- 1otal ding docs of and small IMSME} nx7 0
- vl guistanding ducs of croditers ouher than micro crierpnses and small enicrpnses Hi 28 1749
46.55 18.14
—_— .
1} Raler 1o Note 29 for disclosurcs under bicro, Small and Medivm Enterprses Development Act, 2006 (M3MED)
It Refer to Mate 25 for rclated parn bolances
fe) The Campany's exposore Lo currency ond liguidity nisks rolated 1o lrade payables is disclosed in Naie 28
Trade payables ageing schedule
Ag 31 March 34
Dutstanding for fulluwing perivd from due dite of transaction
Particulars Acernel Expenses Less than | vear 1-2 vears 2-3 vears Mure than 3 vears Total
027 - - - - 027
4614 014 - - - H6.2%
1641 ni4 - - - 46.55
As au 3 March 2023
Qutstanding for following period from due date of transaction
Particulars Accrucd Expenscs Less (ham [ vear 1-2 vears 2-3 yeans Mare chaw 3 vears Total
11 MEME - 170 - - - 0,70
tiiy Oihers 17.39 0o 0o - - 1749
lTntﬂ 1738 0.75 o3 - - 15.19
The Compan docs uod hine any dispuled ducs which are payabhe as a1 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023
4 Corrent financial Rabikiics - Dihers As at Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2923
Emplosee retucd povables 047 1518
Ouher prans bl . 0
A7 %
15 Oc¢her current Nubibics Ag A Asal
31 March 2 31 March 2023
Advance from customers 174 sl
Siptutory ducs payabkc 493 408
2137 53,84
===
13 Curren provisany As al As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Provigign for employee benclis
Gratuy (Refer 1o Mo 19) - [0
Compensated abseness iRefer 1o Mo 1) 04 0¥
Lus 115
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Notes 1a the frcunciul staiemenis far the vear ended 31 March 1824
£ 1 mmournns ave 18 FNR moliouns, it oblre s sinked)

1T Rowenue fevm operntions Far the vear ended Fer tha yuar sodod
3 Miarch 2024 31 March 2003
Sule of service
Bannecmwm fecs M 14 AR 2
o0 )d M0

The cnmract habduies primardy relae i the sdvanee conaderanon reccived itain eusamers o which revense 15 recognized wiwn the porformance nbligainon < wvord serveeet delvered
Adrance collectnn i3 poeopnusd when pavmcsl w rereved besore e relaed porkimenee abligation B salbalied Excess of reveiue oter wivcas 1 rerarded &5 mblled revenie Revimse

rouigminl o thee Saaemunl of 1l amd | oz same a4 the comracied prics

Adal
3! Murch 1024

Condruct (mbiicies

= Advante Bom clkdomers 1734

Trade revumables. g

Azal
3 Murch 2023

3181

%3

Motz Consubermng (he nare o buawnesa of dus Company. e sbare conua labihye ate goneralh, maserohsed a2 revenus and wads recervables i converted it cosh withm e same

weralin, ek
(Rher icmmy For tha yuar vodud For 1he year ended
31 March 24 31 March 2023
Trovrsaen mo lmper requared wrilen back . i b
Tnlerest un weeme 0% refuml o4 -
Musccllapemis meome (1113 oa7
o [1§]
Emplayce bencllis expensa Fof b year ended For tho yuar ended.
31 March 2034 31 Mureh 2023
Salanus, vagus il boms 5% T
Contrsbmbien Lo providen faned and olser faeda frefer 2 helaw] LOE] [N
Sl el e eqpenaet 117 042
17 EXTH

2 Defincd eoniributinn plans

The Company makes. contninasones, dewrmaned a5 0 specified poremniage of cnployee salanes, i reipeet of qualfane. amployees towarda Providend Fund. Labowr Wellare Fund and
Virplonreas’ Siake nmwance, whach are defined contnbalion plans The Company has no ohlosteona mlur than to make (e spotificd contrbaons The contnlbutons ¢ charged o mrodilon

Moss 4 ey accrne The amaud 27 AN CRpaAC W w Provident Fund, Labenw Wellure Pund and Fmpkivess Staw Tnamance for Use year aggregaled o MR D 15
T30 Morch 2023 - INRO L5 ¢

b Compursuied absunces

o piowncspal wurd il % th P b obligaion ar 2t pvon bel
Ada Asat
Particulars 31 March 203 31 March 2021
k) e
Disoumiing mu pa T Tiv
inun (L)

Salary grevsih rale pa
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Mntes to the Amancial satements kor the Fear ended 3 March 2024
£ | aropmis arg 1 TATE mrlhos, warlese adkerer siated)

& Defined Broem Plan
Gratulcy

nu:Cw‘![ﬁn}' has 3 dermed benclit graoy plom iery cmpkmroe nho has comploled Mo vears of mane of sormce 2e0s 3 gravos on depaiere 2 [ daes 43lary { by drawm walaryh B cach
enmpleied year af sennce The scheme s ol funded

The inlkwmg wabh the compe alf ncl b i iy i pronid ar bowd ond smonws resaeoeed mthe Ralasce Sheal for the sasd plas
u)] Expeoce reesgnboed i Statemont of Profieand Lugs
Fur the Fror ended For dhe year end,
Panjcubips 31 March 20 M Mrarch 2623
CITenl servive vt LY} L)
Trueris com L] 02§
Tutal expevics recsgmised in the Stulernent of Prolt and Less W4T oM
by Remeasurements recoglied dirccily In tiher compretensive incinme
For the yuar enided For the year ended
Purticulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
MNevactuurial fguiniioss recagniped bnothe yoar
= changes m demuographng assmplions - -
= haimted o Gmane ) 2 I pus . iy
= haiges meserient e adjsmenis A0 6l 63
Amount reogmired in othur comprohenslve incems [LE11] 060
<} Chunpe i presen vakie al hemeil oblization
Far ihe yemr eniel Foc the yeur cnded
Partizulars 31 Murch 204 31 March N3
Prizsand value wl' o auon a3 a1 Uie begamng of the sear 4N i
Cumend soriie cost L H iy
Pam Service Com und Il i imwm CoansT oo - -
Inderon ool n i 015
Aciuanal |gam Ploss a1y L]
Fomciits pasd 14 324 (11N
Preaont value of vbligntlen xs an the end of the vear 415 i
di Amoonls 1a be recepmized o Bulance Sheet
Ad Art
Parilculars 31 March 2024 3 March 0L
Treseny vahie of the defined henefil ddigauon ot te ond of the Year ars 4T
Fam voloe of plan assels ab the end of' the year . -
Mer habilicy racsgnized in chie Bakanee Shiot LTI
Heop=uuonl nis 363
Current E L L]
£} The princlpal eumpiiogs wed in deteradming the grawdry benedil oblgation are s given beles
At Avsd
Particufars 31 March 2014 31 Murch 073
L %
Dhscoumine rals [ 41k T T
100 Lo

Balary growthraepa (uy

1o Thhe deicount rte 15 pencrally based upon the markel yields avalahic on Chovenment homds o dhe acecunung. doke v o ferm thot matchas that of the iahilses
[ud The salary srowth ease ukes: accnmn ol aflaion, Sonmhny. promolion aed sther relevant faciors on lene borm bagia

As As al

Demographhe s1sumpbens 31 March Hi4 3 March 2y
Retrcmend Mue [yews) £ [
Bfanabiny Table TALM I 22000 LALM (I2-2004)

ialbmats table Lo dnbde
Wthelrwwnd Rt k- "
Apus
Lip o 30 Yiars 15 £
Ttwam 31 1o 4d vears 13 15
Abovy 44 s m n

T | b Compaany bl tinbalee o srspenas 1br thie et viow g [NR 40 17, (30 March 2023 - TNR O RS 0
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
AN amounts are in INR mithons, unfess orierwise siated)

Seasitivity analysis

R bly possible changes at the reponting date to one of the relevant ! ptions, holding other i would have affected the defined benefit
obligation by the amounts shawn below
31 March 2024
Increage * Decrease *
Driscount raie (0 3% movarment) {001} aal
00l {0ol)

Salary growth cate (0 5% movement)

31 March 2023
Increase * Decreage *
[0.06) 007
Q06 10.06)

Discount rae (0 3% movernent)
Salary growth rate (0 5% mavement)

Although the analysis does not take account of the full distriburion of cash Mows expecied under the plan, it does provide an approximation of the sensitivity of Lhe assumptions
shown

* Positive amount represents increase in provision
* Negalive amount represents decrease in provision

Sensilivity changes due 1o wathdrawal and mortality are not matenial and hence not disclosed

There was na change in the method and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior years

E) Maturity profile of defined benefit obllgation As at Asan
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Year

0-1 year - 083
1-2 year - 079
2-3 year 003 |92
3-4 year 03 047
4-5 year 003 o3
5-6year - 010
After 6 years 015 042

025 4.71
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Notes 1o (he Amancial siatements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(AN amowus are in INR miflions, anless otherwise siosed)

20 Other expenses For the year ended

For the year ended

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Rent expenses 224 044
Power, fuel and water 002 003
Rates and raxes 42 als
Printing and stanonery 013 012
Tnsurance 154 o070
Travelling and conveyance 250 z02
Legal and professional fees 5933 2705
Payment to auditors * 030 028
Loss an disposal of property. plant and equip 316 -
Miscellaneous sxpenses 02z 026
Ti.56 31.02
*Payment to avditors
As Auditors
Suautory audiy 030 025
030 0.25
2l Deprecistion and amortisation expenses For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 0219 023
0.2% 023
2  Earmings/{loss) per share (EP5)
Basic EPS is cakeulated by dividing the loss for the year annburable to ¢quiry shareliolders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding duning the year
Diluted EPS is ealewlaed by dividing the loss for the year atiributable ro the equiry sharshold ighted ae nymber of equity shares oustanding during the year plus the
weighted average number of equiry shares thar would be issued ou conversion of all the dilunive potential equny shares imo equity shares
Far the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
et loss anributable o equity sharehold {7 56) (3134
Weightad average number of equiry shares outsianding during the year for calculation of basic EPS 10,000 10,000
Weighied average number of ¢quiry shares outstanding during the year for caleulation of diluted EPS 10,000 10,000
Mominal value of equity share (NR) 11} 10
Basic earmingsi{losses) per share (INR) {75600 (3.13400)
Diluted eamings/{losses) per share [INR) (756.00) 13,134.00)
Reconciliation of net loss atuributable to equity sharehelders (basic earnings per share)
Met profitf {loss) after tax as per Staterment of Profit and Loss (7 56) 31 34)
Net boss atiributable te equicy sharcholders (7.56) {3134}
Caleulation of weighted B ber of shares for dilwted earmimgs per share for the year snded 31 March 2024
Particulars Number Weighted Averape
Equity shares as on 31 March 2024 10,000 10.000
L L000 10,000
Calculation of weighted £ ber of shares for dilwted earnings per shave for the year ended 31 March 2023
Particulars Number Weighted Average
Equiry shares as on 31 March 2023 10,000 10,000
£ 0,000 (X
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Al amounts are in INR millions. unless otherwise stated)

3

24

Commitments and Conlingent liabilities

fto the extent not provided for)
As at As at

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Commitments
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and others, -
and not provided for

Contingent liabilities

Operating Segments

The company has only one stream of business i.e. management support to hotel properties. The management reviews whole busmess as single
operating segment. Accordingly, the figures appearing in these financial statements relate to the Company’s single operating segment
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Noaes to the financial statements for the Year emded 31 March 2024
(AN amonms aoe e INR midlions, wnless atfervise skated)

253 Related party disclosures

a) Relared party and namve of related party refationship whera contral exists

Descripdion of relationship Narme of the Party

Agiya Capital Investments Company, K.5.C P (ull
10 August 20233

ACIC Maurivius 2 (il 10 Aumust 20233

SAMHI Hotels Limited {w e [ |0 August 2023}

Ulimate holding Company

Holding Company

by Other related parties with whom transaciions have laken place

Descripaion of relutionship Name of the Parey
Duet India Hotels iChennai OMR) Privare Limited
Duet India Hotels (Chennai) Prvare Linied

Dwet India Hosels (Hyderabad) Private Uimited
Duet India Hotels (faipur) Private Limited

Duet Tndia Hotels (Pune Privale Limited

Fellow Subsidiary

Description of rélationship Nanie of the Party
Sudhir Gupta - Chief Executive ofTicer (resignation on 15 March 2024}
Subodh Sadana - Direcior (resignation on 16 Octaber 2023)

Key management personnel
Rahul M Lauta - Director tappoinunent on 06 Ociober 2023)

Simranjeet Sinul) - Director (appointment on 04 March 2024)

Mate- The refationships as mentigned above penain 1o those related parties with whom wransactions have laken place during the year, except where conlrol exist, in which case the
lationships have been ioned irrespective of ranzactions with the related party

¢) Refated party transactions during the current year/previous year

Holding company Fellow Subsidiary / Key
Particulars personacl

31 March 2024 31 March 1023 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Revenue from operalions
Duet India Hotels (Ahmedabad) Private Limited - - 10.62 3.0
Duei India Hotels {Chennai OMR} Private Limied - - .01 3.70
Duet Tudia Houels { Chennai) Privae Limited - - 819 290
Duet India Hotels (Hyderabad) Private Limited - - 3037 1180
Duet [ndia Hotels (Jaipur) Private Limited - - 10,55 280
Duet [ndia Hotels (Pune) Private Limiled - - 24.50 1370
Reimbursement of exp [{]
Sudhir Gupta - - - 115
Subodh Sadana - - - oo
Rahyl N Lama - - 0 34 -
Sinran|eet Singh - - 0Nz -
Employee benefits
Rahu! N Lzma - - .09 -
Sinranjeet Singh - - 043 =
Advance from customers
Duet India Howels (Ahmedsbad) Private Limited - - 419 1081
Dust India Hotels (Chennai ObIR) Private Linited - - 540 90
Duel India Hotels iChennai) Private Limited - - 3.0¢ 303
Duer lindip Hotels {Hyderabad) Private Limited = = 43 63 1333
Duet Indiz Hotels (Pune) Private Limited - - 30 39 1158
Dust India Howels (Jaipur) Private Limired - - 793 1092
Wrirten bark trade payable
ACTC Maurfiins 2 - 018 - -
Asiva Capital | Company K SCP - 064 - -
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Motes o (ke inancial statements far the year emded 30 March 2024
(A cmovngs are i INR miflions, nnless otherwise stated)

4) Related party balances as at year emd

Halding Company Fellow Subsidiary f Key ]
Particelars rersomnel
3t March 2024 31 March 2023 31 March 2024 31 March 2933

xher financial liabdlities

Trade advances

Duet India Hotels (Chennail Private Limited - - - 4 36
Duet lndia Hotels (Hvderabad) Private Limirted - - 13 64 1290
Duet India Hotels (Jaipur) Private Limited = - a7 10 56
Duet India Hotels { Ahmedabad} Private Limited - - - 10 45
Duet India Holels (Pune) Private Limited - - - 1113
Other financial liabilities

Employee related pavables

Sudhir Gupta - - - 0.06
Si iget Singh - - 012 -
Other curremt binbilities

Reimbursement exp 0 diractors

|Subodh Sadana - - - aal
Other current assets

Staft advance

5i jeet Singh - - 949 -
Trade receivables = -

Duet India Hoels {Ahmedabad) Privawe Limiled - - 0399 032
Duet India Hotels (Chennai OMR) Private Limited - - 536 -
Duet India Hotels (Chennai) Private Limited - - 119 -
Duet India Hotels (Pune) Private Limited - - 0.08 -
| Trade receivables {Unbilled revenue)

Duet India Houels {Ahmedabad) Private Limited - - - 330
Bruet India Howels {Chennai OMR) Private Limired - - - 370
Duet Tndia Hetels (Chennail Private Limited - - 140 190
Duet India Hotels (Hyderabad} Private Limited - - - Ll 30
Duel India Hotels (Jaipur] Privae Limited - - - 230
Duet India Hotels (Pune} Private Limited - - - 13 70

Neote: The abowe figures do not include provisions for encashable leave, grawity and premium paid for group health insurance, as separate actuarial valuation / premium paid are not
available




ACIC Advizory Privale Limited

CIN: BS5200HEHIFTCON0E o

MNuwtes o ihe Fnunciul stateens for che vear emded 31 March 2024
1M crouirts are tr BT smdliouns, watess ethenuise stoted)

26 Financiul invremenis = Fair vuboes amd risk management

7

Fimamcial mstruments by category and fair value

The below bk swnman.cs 1he judgemends and esuomcucs moade in detenmuning the Gur values of U financial ingraments e are &) recognised and measurcd A Gaic value and (b measwred al amonised cosh and Tor o hich fnr
vahues arc dischosed o 1 fironcel sanements To provade an indicarion about the reliabaliny of e vpus weed in detcmninig Fair value, e Conmram; has classificd is Ningncial msimments inis the theee levels preseribed

wnder [ Accouimimg siandard

3 March 2024

Particulars Level of Hicrarthy Fubr Value Thraugh Predic Fair ¥alue Thraugh Oiker Amarisad Coa
and Lass (FYTPL) Comprehenzive Tnonme
{FYTOLH
Fimuncial sssets
Current
Trade recevables - - a0l
Cash s cxh equivalents - - 1.0
Current fistancial agseis - Othiers - - 012
Total fimancial assets - - 0.y
Financial lahiliticd
Current
Trade pavables - - 46 35
Ohber Minancials likniies - - 47
- +102

Total firancial liabilities

31 March 2023

Particolars Levelaf Wierarchy | Fair Value Through Profit]  Fair Valoe Through Other Amoniised Cosi
i Losy {FYTPL) Comprehensive Incowte
!Filnlciul s
Nom=carmeni
Other Ninancial sasers - - Qa5
Current
Trube rooenvablos - - 38 52
Cash and cash equivalents - - i
Total financial acsens - - 41,35
Financial liahilities
Correst
Trade pvables - - [ENL]
iber financials liabilities - - 150
- 3343

Total financial lishilities

The incutagement assessed an e Gur value of cach and ¢ash cqua alzmis, tAds recovables, scounty depasits. unbilled revenue, irmde and ather payables and sther qwren Minancal assers and labiliics approamate iar
canmying amounls largely doe 1o the sh of these L

Fair value icrarchy
Tiis secan explains (e judgiments and csiimaics made dn dewemdnmg thie Cur vabees of Uw: fiancial Lhad tr b ised and d ar faue vahoe and (b ncasured al amonised cost aod for vineh Cur values
are disclaged In the Miancial To provsdé an indicalion abaut the rehnbility of (e irpms used in deteminng G value. the Company has ¢lassited ns Rnancial insimmenis o the ke kevels preseribed under the

accouniing standard. An cxplanaimn of cach bevel follgns andementh U able
Al assers and [vabilwics for wikich Fair value is measred of dischosed m the Francol siemcnts e calegonsed sl Lhe Gur value Incrarcin, desoribed as follows, bascd onthe Towess kel iopul thal is siemllcant w the Gar

valug measuicincil a5 3 whale

=Level | — Cruoted {unadiusted) markst prices in 0o narkoors for identical asacts or lisbikines

= Levl 2 — Vaduavion wochniques for wiizh vhe lowest [oved input thal is significant w Lhe Fur sabkee ntasarement is dirscily of indimeoly obser able
= Loved 1 — Valuacion wechniques for wirich il dowest Iovel inpul that o <ienidbeant i il Far vaboe seasurcinend 1§ wnobgenable

There han ¢ boen ng wanslors among ks el | and 1oel 2 dunng il corrend s

risk bieelives and pelicics
Tiwe Cotnpanm s Auanklal liabilnes compnse borrowing:, micniion nancy, (ade and other payabics The omin porpoese of these fmancial liabihies w w Gnaiee U Cotpam: s and 1o proside Lo sup o
us operaions The Company s prinapal fingncial asseis inclide seounity deposns. irde bles. cash and cash vquivalents and of er Minancial asscls that denve dircerly fromi s operations

The Compam is cxposed 10 Markel risk. credst risk and hquidiy nsh. The Coinpam 's scomor nokigement g crsees e management of these nshs. The Compaim s sohior menagement i ©ws and Jgrees pelicies for maniguig
el of these reks. vimch arc summonzed boow
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Moias o the imanckal 4aremenis for the vear endied 30 March 2004
&N it wve i IR anlhoess, mndesy el seirdd

Finsnxivl ciak mumsgement ihjuctives and pblebes

L Market risk

The Company is wxpased o markel toli peiwanily relaing Lo e o ol changes i markel prces, 2ach a9 foreign cechange rawes and mileres e, thar will alfiv L Company s cxpense of the valiw of ils hoktmes of' [inamaal
inslumeni <

ik, Crelt rlk

Coaalit rish 13 ahr 1k o] finanaud kess v the Compony o 4 cuslomer o counlarpory Le 3 lnancal mstwiar Brld tomeet s omracial ebiipabons Tk cambang amiant of fodieal asens fpreio U maamum crodn nsk epnsre
T Commany b ereditl poficics mploce ol the wip o these crodu, risks ane J om an ongoeog base

Tuvcaler Ly e etendit fask fr Balanices watlh tambs only hgh roed banks arc sccepled

The Company an low thal rp W5 expecled cralit bases 1o respea of e revis abbet The managenwn) s 3 mpluierl gppecocl for the purpase of compulaton of expecial el brss for ol
receivables [0 monnoting cutiomer crodi Nk, customers ore grouped sccordeng wa shr coedes darackensuce, meluding whether they ane an indrodual or kepal enuts . thear geegraphical [ocanen, ndusyre and exocnee of prevgus
Unancel defficubis, o' am

Expecicd eredin loss for trade receivables wnder skmphificd sppreach

For the ¥ear ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
ot carmying ama auil 352
Tepurid crndn beses - -
Chysimg balancy 2401 M

Uik Lisualstity risk

Laquodsly resks are manapal by the Company's managoment (0 2ccwdaney wit Compans®s poliey [ hs Compam, 3 objocine i 1o Masrian 2 babanes botweon conlimwly of fundng and evibulily il e e of honk kank and cquity
shures The compacs aLemp v osure thal P 1# 2 balnmes: bataecn the bming ol sullow s inflow of funds

Iai Expuawre to lyubdity rink
1l d and exehuding i | el paymoms

Thee fullowing, ard e rensasming contractusl matms of franosd iobaduies at G reporung daie The amounss afe grow and

Cantraciual cavh Maw
3 March 21024 Carrying amaunt Total ] year 1-2years 25 years More thun 5
years

[Nam - dermeativa fimancil Babilie:

Cuwren Trads pavahles 16 55 df 53 4 55 - = =
CHher current finoncial Labililses o7 47 LR - - L]
AL 102 T2 - - -
Comirachwal cosh fowrs
21 March 2023 Carrying amomi Taal a1 year 12 years 25 yeare Bara than 5
srars
Nonderivative Mnanctal lahilithes
Trado payahles 1217 [EA L 1217 -
Diher cwrent Nnancial lishliies 1524 LS 3y 1524 -

3343 3343 3343 £l
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Nadex

the fascial Awements e the veuar ended 31 M ch 024

ol asteaere g an FXR picllicers, umdess arkgricity st

29 Dbcheores o dHer, Small amd Mediom Enterpros Develipmen Acc, 2006 {SMED sl As ar

31 Mlareh 2034 I Murel, 2003
D i rmicru, Amnall ol i cdin auppiiers
M urwimia remamamg rigaed 1 e 3o dmall - oppluert 2 30 the cod of e 4 eac
[— Wit nm
Inbaest . -
Phe ameunl oo aberasd guand bt buser a6 per il M) 1l amd Mg Ender Mhereh At I MSMIT} AcL HRKG - -
The atount of ke panngida neede wesmern and aoll wuppliens hesond the uppesnded day duning cach seegniing wor . -
Thee gemerupnt o ncoresit du aned parvabile e the: voar oF delay . makeneg payment oaduch have been pad b botomd e . .

appoenced dav dunag the vewd Ful wathru addug The inlme st cpecatied under MSMIT} Ael WG

Thur et o] aptses] sooed amd ramaming wogared o fa end of sl soomming Leos

fhe amowmd o Turther et romasmeg the: and patable vim m he suceccding ears ol swh Lo who de e
thics a8 abors ane actually pawd v the small chierpa: ko the purpea ol dialledanes 15 3 Jeduenble sopendilure under
Suclin 13 ol e MEMETY Aer H¥l6

Mhe managemeol has sdenlficd coemnses which have moided goods and wonices 1o the Campany and whach gualify whder e defiaman ol macro and small ercepnses, 20 delined undsr
Mizie Sl and Medm Fntcipeue T Ad, B BWSKTY dinuly . thi dhscheiie 10 reapesl of he anwnonl< pavable 1o such onkerpmacs as o 11 Marcl, 24 und V1 March
2020l born whde o Alse Gnadcrad slatemicms Based sttt coaed wd atkablc wirl te Compai

M1 Ruwtlit ns reuirecl b Sebedde 11 ko the Com pondes Aer, 2013;
Ratiu I times: % Sumerate Deuminatur 31 Murch 2023 31 March 2023 |Tnevease! decrrase * |
[apCureem Raws Fit timaes. Tl Cuievl hasels Vol £t [ ralnliees ulg L] ST
| b3 Feevart o Fquine Katen In®s 1 oas par the vear Ancrles Tol iy 10 1| il s ATRI
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